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As a consequence of the Government’s plan to invest in large 
infrastructure projects, and increased private sector spending, 
domestic demand for cement is expected to remain strong for 
the medium to long term. 

In view of this strong projected growth for cement, the Compa-
ny has decided to install a new production line of more than 1.3 
million tons capacity at its existing site in Nowshera, Khyber 
Pakhtunkhwa Province. Apart from achieving economies of 
scale, this will also allow the Company to meet future demand 
for cement locally, as well as continue to serve the Afghan 
market which, owing to its close proximity, the Company is best 
suited to serve.

Expansion of Cement Plant
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Vision
Growth through the best value 
creation for the benefit of all 
stakeholders.
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 the risk-return profile of the 
 Company.

 leveraging technology.

 resource.

 amongst the best blue-chip stocks 
 in the country.

Mission
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The Code of Conduct of the 
Company is based on the 
principles of honesty, integrity and 
professionalism at every stage. 

Product Quality
Regularly update ourselves with 
technological advancements in the 
field of cement production to 
produce cement under the highest 
standards and maintain all relevant 
technical and professional 
standards.

Dealing with Employees
Provide congenial work 
atmosphere where all employees 
are treated with respect and 
dignity. Recognize and reward 
employees based on their 
performance and their ability to 
meet goals and objectives. 

Responsibility to Interested Parties
To be objective, fair and 
transparent in our dealings with 
people who have reposed their 
confidence in us.

Financial Reporting & Internal 
Controls
To implement an effective and 
transparent system of financial 
reporting and internal controls to 
safeguard the interest of our 
shareholders and fulfill the 
regulatory requirements.

Procurement of Goods & Services
Only purchase goods and services 
that are tailored to our requirement 
and are priced appropriately. 

Before taking decision about 
procurement of any goods or 
services, obtain quotations from 
various sources.

Conflict of Interest
All the acts and decisions of the 
management be motivated by the 
interest of the Company and 
activities and involvements of the 
directors and employees in no way 
conflict with the interest of the 
Company.

Adherence to Laws of the Land
To fulfill all statutory requirements 
of the Government and its 
regulatory bodies and follow 
relevant and applicable laws of the 
country.

Environmental Protection
To protect environment and ensure 
health and safety of the work force 
and well-being of the people living 
in the adjoining areas of our plant.

We recognize the need for working 
with optimum efficiency to attain 
desired levels of performance. We 
endeavor to conduct our business 
with honesty and integrity, and to 
produce and supply cement with 
care and competence so that 
customers receive the quality they 
truly deserve.

Code of Conduct
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Strategic 
Objectives
We strive to improve the efficiency of our 
operations through continuous innovation. 
We intend to grow through expansion of our 
core business and through opportunities for 
diversification. It is our endeavour to create 
value for our shareholders by maximizing 
the risk adjusted return on our investments. 
We intend to achieve customer satisfaction 
by way of providing our clients a cost 
effective, quality product.

We aim to develop the long-term 
sustainability of the organization by 
grooming and training our employees and 
providing a congenial work environment, 
where they are motivated to perform at the 
highest standards. We remain committed to 
the highest ethical and moral business 
values and to the true spirit of the Code of 
Corporate Governance.
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 product to our customers.

 integrity, honesty and ethics.

 improve our processes.

 workforce on an ongoing basis.

 stakeholders.

Core Values
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Nature of Business
Cherat Cement Company Limited is a 
Ghulam Faruque Group (GFG) 
Company. Its main business activity is 
manufacturing, marketing and sale of 
Ordinary Portland Cement.  The 
Company is amongst the pioneers of 
cement industry in Pakistan and is the 
number 1 cement in its region. Quality 
is our business; therefore, there are no 
compromises on Quality Management. 
The Company’s annual installed 
capacity is 1,000,000 tons. The plant is 
located at Village Lakrai, District 
Nowshera, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa (KPK) 
province. Due to plant’s geographical 
position, it is ideally located to export 
cement to Afghanistan as well as to cater 
the local market needs in the KPK, FATA, 
Punjab and Azad Kashmir. The Company 
is registered on Karachi, Lahore and 
Islamabad stock exchanges and is also 
ISO 9001 and 14001 certified.
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Group Structure

Introduction
Since its inception, the Ghulam Faruque Group has continuously strengthened and diversified its lines of operations; 
details and brief profile of other leading ventures / group companies are as follows:

Faruque
(Private)
Limited

Madian Hydropower Ltd
Joint Venture for establishing
148 MW hydro power plant

Faruque (Pvt.) Ltd
Holding Company

Established in 1964 as a Parent 
Company of the group, it primarily 
serves as an investment arm of 
the Group.

Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills Ltd
Manufacturer of cane sugar

Established in 1964, its principal 
activity is manufacturing and selling 
of sugar. It is located about 300 km 
from the port city of Karachi, in 
Mirpurkhas and is listed on the 
Karachi Stock Exchange. The 
Company has a Crushing capacity of 
7,000 tons per day and is one of the 
most efficient sugar mills in Pakistan. 
Moreover, it is involved in 
development of higher yield sugar 
cane varieties on its 300 acre 
experimental farm.

Cherat Packaging Ltd
Manufacturer of Kraft Paper and 
Polypropylene bags

Established in 1991 it is the largest 
producer and supplier of paper sack 
and polypropylene (“PP”) bags to the 
cement industry in Pakistan. It is listed 
on Karachi and Lahore Stock 
Exchanges. The Company has a 
production capacity of 265 million 
paper bags per annum and 145 million 
PP bags. It caters to the domestic as 
well as export markets and is also a 
recipient of the prestigious Karachi 
Stock Exchange “Top Companies” 
Award and Management Association of 
Pakistan’s Best Company Award for 
many years.
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Unicol Ltd
Joint venture distillery producing
super fine ethanol

project among Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills, Faran Sugar and 
Mehran Sugar. It is engaged in the production and 
marketing of ethanol from molasses. Its current 
production capacity is 200,000 litres per day. It is 
involved in producing various varieties of ethanol.

Greaves Pakistan (Pvt.) Ltd
Providing specialized Engineering 
Sales and services

It was established in 1859 to provide specialized engineering equipment 
sales and services. However in 1964, the Group acquired a controlling 
interest in the shares of the Company and by 1981 Greaves became a 
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. Greaves has the following 
divisions namely i) Power Generation, ii) CNG Equipment,  iii) Industrial 
Machinery, iv) Solar Engergy and v) LED

Greaves Airconditioning (Pvt.) Ltd
Equipment suppliers and HVAC solution provider

Commencing operations in 1975, this Company is the only HVAC solution 
provider of its kind and is the sole distributor of York (JCI) products in 
Pakistan. It is involved in providing a wide array of services related to 
HVAC equipments that includes designing, installation and maintenance of 
central and packaged units. Moreover, it also Launched residential light air 
conditioning units under the brand name of Euro Aire.

Greaves CNG (Pvt.) Ltd
Pakistan,s leader in CNG installations

Greaves CNG was established in 2001 with a prime motive to install CNG 
facilities at the retail outlets of Petroleum Companies. It is listed as a 
preferred third party investor by all major petroleum companies in Pakistan 
and is currently operating 5 CNG facilities at retail outlets of Shell, PSO 
and Caltex in Karachi and Lahore.

Greaves Engineering (Pvt.) Ltd
HVAC Contractors

Zensoft (Pvt.) Ltd
Information systems services
provider specializing in business
software solutions

It was established in 1998 and is engaged in 
development and sale of computer 
softwares. The company specializes in 
providing high quality business solutions.
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Board of Directors
Mr. Omar Faruque Chairman
Mr. Azam Faruque Chief Executive
Mr. Akbarali Pesnani Director
Mr. Shehryar Faruque Director
Mr. Tariq Faruque Director
Mr. Javaid Anwar  Director
Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi Director
Mr. Aamir Amin (NIT)  Director

Executive Director &
Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Yasir Masood

Executive Director &
Company Secretary
Mr. Abid A. Vazir

Audit Committee
Mr. Javaid Anwar Chairman
Mr. Akbarali Pesnani Member
Mr. Shehryar Faruque Member
Mr. Tariq Faruque Member

Human Resource & 
Remuneration Committee
Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi Chairman
Mr. Azam Faruque Member
Mr. Shehryar Faruque Member

Registered Office / Factory
Village Lakrai, P.O. Box 28, Nowshera

Head Office
Modern Motors House, Beaumont Road 
Karachi 75530

Sales Offices

Peshawar: 1st Floor, Betani Arcade, Jamrud Road

Lahore: 3, Sunder Das Road

Islamabad: 1st Floor, Razia Sharif Plaza 
 Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area

Share Registrar
Central Depository Company 
of Pakistan Limited (CDC) 
CDC House, 99-B, Block 'B' 
S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal 
Karachi-74400

Auditors
Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder
Chartered Accountants

Legal Advisor
K.M.S. Law Associates

Bankers
Allied Bank Ltd.
Bank Al Habib Ltd.
Bank Alfalah Ltd.
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Ltd.
Faysal Bank Ltd.
Habib Bank Ltd.
MCB Bank Ltd.
Meezan Bank Ltd.
National Bank of Pakistan
NIB Bank Ltd.
Samba Bank Ltd.
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Ltd.
Soneri Bank Ltd.
The Bank of Punjab
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Milestones

1985 Cherat Cement started production in February, 
 with 1100 tons per day capacity.

1988 Optimization with 4 stage P.H. & 2 P.C. Burners = 1400 t/day 

1994 Doubling  = 2300 t/day 
 with 5 stage P.H. & Double Sting P.H. Plus 4 Burners in P.C, 

 In addition to Grinding Mill a Roller Press unit was installed.

1994 Caterpillar
 04 CAT power generators incorporated (6 MW) in June.

1996 WARTSILLA Diesel
 Cherat Electric with 04 WDs (20 MW) commissioned in February.

1998 IKN System at Cooler. = 2500 t/day

2001 HMI     
 In January the manual operating panels converted to HMI.

2002 Cooler E.P.
 For better efficiency, Multicyclones converted to 
 Electrostatic Precipitators in April.
     
 Cherat Electric Merger in Cherat Cement in October..

2003 Coal Mill
 On 7th April a Coal Grinding Mill was incorporated to replace 
 the primary fuel Furnace Oil to Coal.

2005 Capacity Expansion = 3300 t/day

2006 LVT Cement Press installed.    

2008 03 Roto Packers Haver & Boecker (Germany) Commissioned 
 on October 08 with packing capacity of 270 t/h (90 x 3).

2009 Systems Applications & Products SAP incorporated in the Company

2010 Waste Heat Recovery for Power Generation started in February.

2012 Tyre Derived Fuel Processing Plant and RASPER (The Shredder)
 Installed

2013 Refuse Derived Fuel Processing Plant Imported
 from Germany & Incorporated in the Company in December.
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Organizational Structure

Shareholders

Board Committees

Board of Directors

Chief Executive

Finance

Corporate Affairs

Sales & Marketing

Works & Projects

Internal Audit

Information Technology

Procurement

Administration

Administrative Reporting
Functional Reporting

Human Resource
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Calendar of Notable Events
July 2013- June 2014

July  05  Gold Medal Award Ceremony

July 20  Iftar Dinner with Dealers

August  14 Independence Day Celebration

August  18 Tree Plantation Day  

September  22  Movie Night and Annual Dinner at HO

October  19 Eid Milan Party

October  31 Annual General Meeting

November GFG Group Cricket Tournament at HO

January 20 Plant Management Dinner at Islamabad 

April  13 GFG Group Table Tennis Tournament 

May 01 Labour Day Celebrations

June 30 Year End Closing 
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Geographical Presence

PAK - Cement Local

AFG - Cement Export

Factory

Nowshera

Offices

Karachi (Head Office)

Peshawar (Sales Office)

Lahore (Sales Office)

Islamabad (Sales Office)

Main Distribution

Main Distribution

Main Distribution

IND - Clinker Export
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Energy costs constitute a major portion of the cost of production 
for a cement manufacturer. After successfully installing waste heat 
recovery plant and utilizing shredded tyres along with local coal 
to efficiently manage its energy costs, the Company has installed 
Refuse Derived Fuel project at a cost of Rs. 500 million. This 
project involves utilizing municipal solid waste as a source of fuel 
to substitute some of the coal used presently. In this regard, 
suitable arrangements have also been made for sourcing of 
municipal solid waste. By taking these measures, the Company 
will not only be able to cut down on its energy costs but will also 
reduce to certain extent its reliance on imported coal and mitigate 
the risk of foreign currency fluctuations.

Refuse Derived Fuel Project
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTES:

1. The register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, September 19, 2014 to Tuesday September 30, 2014 
(both days inclusive) and no transfers will be registered during that time. Shares received in order at the office of the Registrar 
of the Company- M/s. Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC), CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’ S.M.C.H.S., 
Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400 at the close of business on Thursday, September 18, 2014 will be treated in time for 
the entitlement of final cash dividend and Right Shares as announced by the Company. The payment of cash dividend will 
be made on existing paid-up capital of Rs. 1,051, 380,080.

 

2. A member of the Company eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint another member as his/her 
proxy to attend and vote in his/her stead. Proxies to be effective must be in writing and must be received by the company 48 
hours before the Meeting.

3. Shareholders of the Company whose shares are registered in their account/sub-account with Central Depository System (CDS) 
are requested to bring original computerized National Identity Card along with their account number in CDS and participant’s 
ID number for verification. In case of appointment of proxy by such account holders and sub-account holders, the guidelines 
as contained in the SECP’s circular of 26th January 2000 are to be followed. 

4. Shareholders of the Company are requested to immediately notify any change in their addresses, to our share registrar M/s. 
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block “B”, S.M.C.H.S. Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi 
- 74400.

5. Shareholders who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) are requested 
to send the same to the Share Registrar of the Company.

Notice is hereby given that the 33rd Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Tuesday, September 
30, 2014 at 12:00 noon at the Registered Office of the Company at Factory premises, Village Lakrai, Nowshera, to 
transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. To receive and consider the audited accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2014 with the 
Directors’ and the Auditors’ Reports thereon.

2. To consider and approve the payment of final cash dividend @ 20% (Rs. 2.00 per share) in addition to interim 
cash dividend @ 10% (Re. 1.00 per share) and bonus shares in proportion of 10 shares for every 100 shares 
held i.e. 10% already paid to the shareholders for the financial year ended June 30, 2014 as recommended by 
the Board of Directors.

3. To appoint auditors for the year 2014/15 and to fix their remuneration.

4. To transact any other business with the permission of Chair.

By Order of the Board of Directors 

Abid A. Vazir
Executive Director &
Company SecretaryKarachi: August 15, 2014

C
he

ra
t 

C
em

en
t 

C
om

pa
ny

 L
im

it
ed

26



A
nnual R

eport 2014

27



It gives me immense pleasure to state that the year 2013/14 has proved to be one 
of the best in the history of your company. Despite facing challenging business 
environment and inflationary trend, your company continued to grow as its 
revenues increased from last year and the profitability touched an all time peak.

Cherat Cement is considered one of the most efficient plants in Pakistan. It has 
taken various cost efficiency measures like Waste Heat Recovery plant, Tyre 
Derived Fuel and more recently Refuse Derived Fuel plant to control its costs. 
Due to the world class quality of its cement and ideal location, your Company 
enjoys strong brand loyalty both in Pakistan and in Afghanistan. 

Several major infrastructural projects have been announced by the current 
government with special focus on constructing highways, dams, hydro power 
and housing projects. Majority of these projects are expected to be launched in 
the northern part of the country, which is the target market for the Company. 
Furthermore, greater spending by the private sector fuelled by inward 
remittances from expatriate Pakistanis on construction related activities, the 
domestic demand is set to grow in the near future. 

In view of the expected rise in the domestic demand for cement, your company 
has decided to enhance its production capacity by installing another production 
line having a production capacity of over 1,300,000 tons per annum at its 
existing site in Nowshera, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Province. The plant will be 
acquired from M/s. Tianjin Cement Industry Design and Research Institute 
Company Limited (TCDRI). The new line is expected to be commissioned in 30 
months time at a cost of approximately Rs. 12 billion. 

Cherat Cement remains a brand of choice for its loyal customers both in Pakistan 
and in Afghanistan. Our endeavor is to remain on path to success through hard 
work and retain our core values of business.

CEO’s Message

Karachi: August 15, 2014
Azam Faruque 
Chief Executive
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Directors’ Profile

Mr. Omar Faruque
Chairman

Mr. Omar Faruque studied from the City 
of London, Polytechnic London, and got a 
degree in B.A. Finance. Currently, he is the 
Chief Executive of Greaves Pakistan (Pvt.) Ltd. 
and  Zensoft (Pvt.) Ltd. He is also a Director 
of Greaves CNG (Pvt.) Ltd . 

Mr. Azam Faruque
Chief Executive 

Mr. Azam Faruque is the Chief Executive of 
Cherat Cement Co. Ltd.  He is an Electrical 
Engineering and Computer Science graduate 

completed his MBA with high honors from 

Business. Apart from the time he has spent 
in the cement industry, he has also served 
as a member on the Boards of State Bank of 
Pakistan, National Bank of Pakistan, and Oil 
and Gas Development Corporation Ltd.  He 
was a Member of the Board of Governors of 
GIK Institute and Member of the National 
Commission of Science and Technology.  
Mr. Azam Faruque has served on the Board 
of the Privatization Commission of the 
Government of Pakistan. At present, he is the 
chairman of KPK Oil and Gas Development 
Company Ltd and a member of the Board of 
Directors of Cherat Packaging Ltd., Faruque 
(Pvt.) Ltd, Greaves Pakistan (Pvt.) Ltd, Atlas 
Asset Management Ltd, Madian Hydro 
Power Ltd, and International Industries Ltd 
as well as being a Member of the National 
Committee of the Aga Khan Foundation.
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Mr. Akbarali Pesnani
Director

Mr. Akbarali Pesnani is an MBA and fellow 
member of both the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants and Institute of Cost and 
Management Accountants of Pakistan. He 
has served as Chairman Gwadar Port and 
Gwadar Port Implementation Authority 
from 2004 to 2006. Mr. Pesnani has been 
associated with the Aga Khan Development 
Network at a senior level for over 35 years. 
Presently he is the Chairman of Cherat 
Packaging Ltd., First Micro Finance Bank 
Ltd. and Aga Khan Cultural Service Pakistan 
and a Director on the Board of Jubilee 
General Insurance Co. Ltd. His association 
with the Ghulam Faruque Group goes back 
almost 30 years.

Mr. Shehryar Faruque
Director

Mr. Shehryar Faruque is a graduate from 

He is the Director Operations of Greaves 
Pakistan (Pvt.) Ltd. He serves on the Boards 
of Directors of Cherat Packaging Ltd, 
Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills Ltd, Faruque (Pvt.) 
Ltd, Greaves Pakistan (Pvt.) Ltd, Greaves 
CNG (Pvt.) Ltd and Zensoft (Pvt.) Ltd. Mr. 
Shehryar Faruque is also serving as Director 
of NBP Fullerton Asset Management Ltd 
(NAFA) and Summit Bank Ltd.  
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Directors’ Profile

Mr. Tariq Faruque
Director

Mr. Tariq Faruque graduated from Case 

holds a dual major in Economics and 
Political Science. He is a Director of Cherat 
Packaging Ltd, Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills Ltd, 
Faruque (Pvt.) Ltd, Greaves Pakistan (Pvt.) 
Ltd, Greaves Airconditioning (Pvt.) Ltd, 
Greaves Engineering Services (Pvt.) Ltd, 
Zensoft (Pvt.) Ltd, Madian Hydro Power Ltd 

a Member of the Board of Directors of Oil 
and Gas Development Company and has 
served on the Board of Governors of Marie 
Adelaide Leprosy Centre. 

Mr. Javaid Anwar
Director

Mr. Javaid Anwar has a Masters Degree in 

and has extensive management experience 
in senior capacities with multinational 
companies in the Oil and Gas sector.
 
He has served as MD and CEO of BOC 
Pakistan Ltd for 15 years. During his tenure, 
BOC won top 25 companies award of 
Karachi Stock Exchange for 13 years. He 
was associated with Burshane Pakistan Ltd 
and played a pioneering role in the LPG 
industry in Pakistan.
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Mr. Aamir Amin
Director (NIT)

Mr. Aamir Amin is the Nominee 
Director of National Investment Trust on 
the Board of Cherat Cement Co. Ltd.
 
He is serving as the Chief Financial Officer 
of NIT. Mr. Amin is a Chartered Accountant 
by profession from Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan with training 
from Ernst & Young - Pakistan and is also a 
Certified Information Systems Auditor. His 
work experience extends to over 14 years, 
mostly in the financial services industry.

Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi
Director

Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi is the Chief 
Executive Officer of Atlas Honda Ltd and 
Group Director Strategic Planning. 

He did B.Sc. in Economics in 1991 from 

graduation, he joined Bank of Tokyo- 
Mitsubishi, New York in the investment 
banking division. He completed his MBA 
in 1995 from Harvard Business School, 

business working with Atlas Investment 
Bank Ltd. He was elected as Chief Executive 
Officer of Atlas Honda Ltd in October 2000. 
Mr. Shirazi has served in the Privatization 
Commission of Pakistan and was Chairman 
of Pakistan Automotive Manufacturers 
Association. He has also served as President 
of Harvard Business School Global Alumni 
Board. He is a Trustee and Member of the 

of Management Sciences.
 
He serves as Board Member of Shirazi 
Investments (Pvt.) Ltd, Atlas Honda Ltd, 
Shirazi Trading Company (Pvt.) Ltd, Shirazi 
Capital (Pvt.) Ltd, Atlas Power Ltd, Pakistan 
Cables Ltd., National Logistics Cell, 
Competitiveness Support Fund and Pakistan 
Petroleum Ltd. 
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Directors’ Report to the Members
for the year ended June 30, 2014

2014 2013
(in tons)

The Board of Directors presents the Annual Report of the Company along with the audited 
accounts for the year ended June 30, 2014.

OVERVIEW

Encouraging steps taken to revive the economy and announcement of large infrastructural 
projects by the government have started to positively impact all sectors of the economy. Despite 
challenging political and security environment in the country and a crippling energy crisis, the 
performance of the cement industry remained promising with a growth of 2.54% in cement 
consumption over the previous year. While domestic demand increased by 4.34%, demand in 
the North of the country recorded an increase of 6.56%. However, exports declined by 2.84% 
this year mainly because of drop in exports to Afghanistan.

PRODUCTION & SEGMENT WISE SALES REVIEW

Comparative production and sales figures are provided under:

The clinker and cement production of 
the company remained in line with the 
market demand for the product. The 
clinker production remained lower than 
last year due to planned maintenance of 
the plant carried out by the Company 
during the year. However, owing to 
effective measures taken, sales were not 
affected as the Company was carrying 
enhanced clinker stock to ensure 
uninterrupted dispatches during the 
period.

Outlay of development funds by the 
government for launch of infrastructure
projects and construction activities carried out by private sector led to rise in local dispatches 
as the domestic sales of the Company grew by 16,574 tons i.e. 2.61% over last year. However, 
due to political uncertainty in Afghanistan arising from the expected withdrawal of NATO  
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Directors’ Report to the Members

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Despite decline in dispatches, stable cement prices during the year under review resulted in an 
increase in the sales revenue of the Company by 2%. During the year, the Company faced 
considerable challenge from rising costs of production due to escalation in prices of major 
input items. Significant increase in electricity tariff and imposition of fuel price adjustment levy 
following the decision of the Honorable Supreme Court has increased the production costs for 
the Company. However, improved liquidity position helped trim down finance costs during the 
year. Together with operational efficiencies, it enabled the Company to post an after tax profit 
of Rs. 1.31 billion for the year 2013/14 as follows:

Summarized operating performance of the Company for the current year and that of last year is 
as follows:

Net sal

Net Profit 1,316.17 1,227.65

ALTERNATE FUELS

After installing waste heat recovery plant and utilizing shredded tyres along with local coal to 
efficiently manage its energy costs, the Company has now embarked on a Refuse Derived Fuel 
(RDF) project. This project involves utilizing municipal solid waste as a source of fuel to 

2014 2013
(Rs. in million)

troops during the year as well as the presidential elections, export sales of the Company 
declined by 57,734 tons or 16% over the previous year. This also had an impact on aggregate 
sales of the Company as it declined by 41,160 tons or 4% during the year.

Domestic Sales 69%
Export Sales 31%

2014

Domestic Sales  64%
Export Sales 36%

2013

SALES
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substitute some of the coal used presently. Not only will the use of RDF allow the Company to 
cut down on its energy costs but it will also reduce to certain extent its reliance on imported 
coal in the future. The project has become operational this year.

EXPANSION OF CEMENT PLANT

Pursuant to our earlier announcement of our intention to expand the capacity of our cement 
plant, we are pleased to inform that keeping in view the expected rise in the domestic demand 
for cement, the Company has decided to install another production line at its existing site in 
Nowshera, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Province. The Plant will be acquired from M/s. Tianjin Cement 
Industry Design and Research Institute Company Limited (TCDRI). TCDRI is the largest cement 
plant manufacturer in China and has wide experience of installing cement plants worldwide 
and also in Pakistan. The plant will have a production capacity of over 1,300,000 tons per 
annum. The new line is expected to be commissioned in 30 months time. The term loan for the 
project has been arranged and the letter of credit for the import of foreign component has been 
established by the Company. The total cost of the project is approximately Rs. 12 billion.

DIVIDEND

In view of upcoming expansion plan of the Company and the liquidity requirements associated 
with projects of such magnitude, the Board of Directors has proposed at its meeting held on 
August 15, 2014 final cash dividend @ 20% for the year ended June 30, 2014. This will be in 
addition to the interim cash dividend of 10% and 10% bonus shares announced earlier by the 
Company. This will take the aggregate cash dividend to 30% for the year. The approval of 
members for the dividend will be obtained at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 
September 30, 2014.

RIGHT SHARES

The Board of Directors has decided to issue 68% right shares on the existing paid-up capital of 
the Company in the ratio sixty eight (68) shares for every one hundred (100) shares held. The 
right shares will be offered at an issue price of Rs. 25/- per share including a premium of Rs. 
15/- per share. The amount so raised shall be used towards the financing of the expansion 

a consortium of Meezan Bank, Bank Alfalah and MCB Bank at competitive rates. The loan will 
have a tenure of 8 years including a grace period of 3 years. The Company will inject the 
remaining amount from its own resources.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY

The Company actively participates in various social 
work initiatives as part of its corporate social 
responsibility. Being a conscientious member of the 
corporate community, the Company contributes 
generously to various social and charitable causes 
including towards health, education and social 
sectors. Currently, the Company is working towards 
the rehabilitation of the IDPs of North Waziristan. In 
this regard, it works with many reputable 
organizations and NGOs in Pakistan. The Company 
has always stood by the people of Pakistan in their 
hour of need and shall always continue to do so.
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Directors’ Report to the Members

SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT

Being a responsible corporate citizen, the Company remained 
committed to continuous improvement in Health and Safety aspects. 
The production facility remained fully compliant with industry 
standards and safety requirements. The installation of WHR plant 
has also helped improve the environment in the areas 
surrounding the factory. The Company has also obtained the 
certification of ISO 14001.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

The Company contributed over Rs. 1.50 billion to the government treasury in shape of taxes, 
excise duty, income tax and sales tax.

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

nts prepared by the management of the Company present its state of 
affairs fairly, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

in preparation of financial statements and any departure therefrom has been adequately 
disclosed and explained.

and monitored.

detailed in the listing regulations.

charges except for those which are being made in normal course of business.

below are the values of the investments of the fund as on June 30, 2014.

    

C
he

ra
t 

C
em

en
t 

C
om

pa
ny

 L
im

it
ed

38



Financial Officer and Company Secretary and their spouses and minor children during the 
year except for sale of shares by Mr. Omar Faruque and Mr. Tariq Faruque.

held within Pakistan. The attendance record of each director is as follows:

each director is as follows:

held. The attendance record of each director is as follows:

* During the year, Mr. Omar Faruque was co-opted as a director in 
   place of Mr. Mohammed Faruque who passed away. 

Mr. Mohammed Faruque * 2

Mr. Akbarali Pesnani 5

Mr. Azam Faruque 5

Mr. Shehryar Faruque 3

Mr. Tariq Faruque 4

Mr. Javaid Anwar 4

Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi 3

Mr. Aamir Amin (NIT) 4

Mr. Omar Faruque *  2

 

Name of Director Meetings Attended

Mr. Javaid Anwar 4

Mr. Akbarali Pesnani 3

Mr. Shehryar Faruque 1

Mr. Tariq Faruque 2

Name of Director Meetings Attended

Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi 2

Mr. Shehryar Faruque 1

Mr. Azam Faruque 2

Name of Director Meetings Attended
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Directors’ Report to the Members

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year, our beloved Chairman – Mr. Mohammed Faruque passed away after serving 
the Company for many years. He has been succeeded by Mr. Omar Faruque as the Chairman 
of the Company. 

FUTURE PROSPECTS 

Despite the economic challenges and the energy crisis in the country, the cement industry has 
performed well during the year. Economic measures taken by the government are having 
positive impact on the macroeconomic indicators of the country. The current government has 
initiated several infrastructural projects, with especial focus on constructing highways, dams, 
energy related projects and housing projects especially in the northern part of the country, 
which is the main market for the Company. Furthermore, greater spending by private sector has 
resulted in rise in construction related activities, which is fueling the demand for cement. It is, 
therefore, expected that the domestic demand shall increase considerably and play an 
increasingly important role in higher cement dispatches in both the medium and long-term. In 
such a scenario, the addition of a new cement line at existing location will not only enhance 
the domestic market share of the Company, but will also allow it to achieve economies of scale 
and optimize the use of its existing resources by better allocation of fixed costs. Furthermore, 
political situation in Afghanistan is also expected to become clearer soon, which may provide 
boost to the reconstruction activities in the country. Your company shall benefit immensely 
from increase in the demand for cement due to its ideal location.  

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

The present auditors M/s. Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder, Chartered Accountants, retire 
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

We would like to thank all the financial institutions having business relationship with us, our 
dealers and customers for their continued support, cooperation and trust they have reposed in 
us. We would also like to share our deepest appreciation for all our staff for their dedication, 
loyalty and hard work.

Karachi: August 15, 2014

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Omar Faruque 
Chairman
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MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES & STRATEGIES

The core objective of our management is to achieve excellence in business where our venture 
may be regarded as amongst the best blue-chip stocks in the country. 

To achieve our objectives, the management strategically strives to enhance stakeholders' value 

investments, which management believes can be achieved through revenue maximization and 
cost control measures. 

On the revenue side, we are confident that our investment on new production plant will reap 
positive results and help in maximizing returns for all stakeholders. 

The tone of our business is set by the marketing targets and budgets, which are aggressively 
designed by the management to achieve highest possible returns.

Cost is effectively controlled by following energy conservation measures through use of LED 
lights, Waste Heat Recovery plant, alternate fuels, like Refuse Derived Fuel and Tyre Derived 
Fuel. In addition, the Company uses combination of both imported and local coal in order to 
keep the fuel costs low.

Effectiveness of internal controls is ensured through active Internal Audit Department, which 

suggestions, the Management takes corrective actions immediately.

Cherat Cement gives key consideration to Human Resource Management. A full fledge HR 
department is established which is supervised by HR & Remuneration Committee of the Board 
of Directors. Approved policies are in place. All the HR functions are integrated where the 

Assessment (TNA) is effectively in place where in-house and external trainings are arranged at 
all management levels. Further, eligible employees receive Service Awards based on their 

workforce which plays a vital role in achieving day to day targets and tactical and strategic 
objectives of the Company.

Pakistan. The use of SAP helps management implement better internal controls and employ best 
business practices.

Another prime objective of the management is customer satisfaction for which management 
takes every step to ensure high quality customer care and product quality. For this purpose the 

obtained certification of Environment Management System ISO 14001:2004.
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The result of these steps can be seen in our increased revenue, controlled costs and satisfied 
customers base with no major complaints. 

HUMAN RESOURCE POLICIES

The Company hires energetic, talented, and motivated human resources and provides them a 
congenial and healthy working environment to utilize their capabilities efficiently. The 
Company believes that its core strength is its people, who strive every day to meet individual 
challenges and help the Company achieve its collective targets. The Company has in place a 

according to their performances. The Company also inducts apprentices in its Apprenticeship 
Program through which graduates from reputable institutions are regularly inducted. 

Industrial Relations
We maintain excellent relations with our employees and labour. There is a formal labour union 
in place which represents all classes of workers and independently takes care of all labour 
related issues. The Company takes every reasonable step for swift and amicable resolution of all 
their issues.

Succession Planning 
The Company has a process for identifying and developing internal people with the potential to 
fill key business leadership positions. This process increases the availability of experienced and 
capable employees that are prepared to assume these roles as they get to that level.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Profits earned in recent years have significantly improved the liquidity position of the Company 
contributing to a better operating cycle of the business. The Company has not only been able to 
pay off almost all its long term loans but also managed to invest more than Rs. 1 billion in short 
term deposits with high credit rating funds.  These steps helped the Company reduce its 
financial charges and earn profits on short term investments. Moreover, the gearing of the 
Company has also decreased from 11% to 6%.

MARKET SHARE

Cherat is a premium brand of Ordinary Portland Cement in Pakistan and Afghanistan. Our main 
markets in Pakistan are KPK, FATA, and Punjab. As per the data available  on the website of All 
Pakistan Cement Manufacturers Association our market share is around 3% because of our 
superior quality, Cherat is the first choice of customers in most of the markets.

Additional Information
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CONSUMER PROTECTION MEASURES 

The Company ensures that the cement is packed and 
dispatched to its consumers in a safe manner. It also 
complies with all safety standards and industrial 
requirements. The Company ensures that the customers 
get best value for money.

BUSINESS ETHICS AND ANTI CORRUPTION 
MEASURES

The Company is fully committed to promoting the highest standards of ethical behavior 
throughout our business. The management condemns corrupt and fraudulent practices and 
ensures transparency, integrity and honesty in all aspects of work. The Company expects all its 
employees to perform services with integrity and professionalism. Fundamental to this is the 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY

The Company actively participates in various social 
work initiatives as part of its corporate social 
responsibility. Being a conscientious member of the 
corporate community, the Company contributes 
generously to various social and charitable causes 
including towards health, education and social 
sectors. Currently, the Company is working towards 
the rehabilitation of the IDPs of North Waziristan. 
In this regard, it works with many reputable 
organizations and NGOs in Pakistan. 

Community Investment & Welfare Schemes 
The Company invests in community and welfare schemes through generous donations to 
education system and free medical dispensary for neighboring community. In this regard, the 
Company has financed a school in Shaidu village in collaboration with The Citizens 
Foundation.

National Cause Donations 
The Company has always stood by the people of Pakistan in their hour of need and shall always 
continue to do so. Currently, the Company is working towards the rehabilitation of the IDPs of 
North Waziristan.

Details of Charity Account 
During the year the Company made a donation of Rs. 3.54 million. The main focus of the com-
pany was on education and health. The main recipients of the donations include Aga Khan Uni-
versity Hospital, The Kidney Centre, Institute of Business Administration, The Lahore Hospital 
Welfare Society, Marie Adelaide Leprosy Centre, WWF Pakistan, Nowshera Lions  Club, Mayo 
Hospital and various local NGOs.
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Rural Development Programs & Employment of Special persons
The Company takes care of people living in its vicinity through regular donations for 
development of household, education and medical facilities. Being an equal opportunity 
employer the management encourages hiring workforce from local vicinity and employment of 
less privileged and special persons are also considered.

BUSINESS CONTINUITY AND DISASTER RECOVERY POLICY

The Board of Directors has approved and continuously reviews the IT Policy and Business 
Continuity Plan of the Company. The management has arranged offsite data storage facilities. 
All the key records are being maintained at different locations. Employees are aware of the steps 
required to be taken in case of any emergency.

SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT

Being a responsible corporate citizen, the 
Company remained committed to continuous 
improvement in Health and Safety aspects. The 
production facility remained fully compliant with 
industry standards and safety requirements. The 
Company has also obtained the certification of 
ISO 14001.

Occupational Safety and Health 
We manage and utilize resources and operations in such a way that the safety and health of our 
people in ensured. We believe our safety and health responsibilities extend beyond protection 
and enhancement of our own facilities. We have a highly trained safety team, emergency 
response team, a qualified doctor and paramedical staffs at our plant. Our workers are 
sufficiently trained through fire & safety trainings and are also adequately equipped with 
Personal Protection Equipment. In addition, the factory is provided with dedicated safety van, 
fully equipped ambulance and an in-house dispensary. 

Environment Protection Measures

reduce all adverse environmental aspects arising 
out of our operations. For this purpose we have 
complied with the international standard of 
environmental management system ISO 14001 
and NEQS standards. The installation of WHR 
plant has also helped improve the environment in 
the areas surrounding the factory.

In order to meet the purpose, our plant is equipped 
with Electrostatic Precipitators which controls dust and gas emissions. Further, to improve the 
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environment, natural tree plantation on large scale has been done in and around the factory 
premises. 

Steps to Mitigate Effects of Industrial Effluents
Safe and healthy environment has always been the priority of the management of the Company. 
This mainly includes a healthy environment for employees and surrounding communities. In 
addition, the Company is in compliance of NEQS standards and also has acquired international 
certification of ISO 14001:2004. The Employee are well trained to handle such situation

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Despite the economic challenges and the energy crisis in the country, the cement industry has 
performed well during the year. Economic measures taken by the government are having 
positive impact on the macroeconomic indicators of the country. The current government has 
initiated several infrastructural projects, with especial focus on constructing highways, dams, 
energy related projects and housing projects especially in the Northern part of the country, 
which is the main market for the company. Furthermore, greater spending by private sector has 
resulted in rise in construction related activities, which is fueling the demand for cement. It is, 
therefore, expected that the domestic demand shall increase considerably and play an 
increasingly important role in higher cement dispatches in both the medium and long-term. 
During this year the local demand of cement grew by 4.34% and we are expecting it to increase 
further in the coming years. In such a scenario, the addition of new cement line at existing 
location will not only enhance the domestic market share of the Company, but will also allow 
it to achieve economies of scale and optimize the use of its existing resources by better 
allocation of fixed costs. Furthermore, political situation in Afghanistan is also expected to 
become clearer soon, which may provide boost to the reconstruction activities in the country. 
Your company shall benefit immensely from increase in the demand for cement due to its ideal 
location.

The Company on an annual basis sets marketing, production and other targets in the form of a 
budget which is duly approved by the Board of Directors. We have met almost all the key 

Report.

Targets are set for both financial and non financial indicators. Financial indicators are set for 
revenue, costs, profitability, gearing and liquidity etc., while non financial targets are set for 
company and brand image, human resource development and growth/ expansion etc. 

For revenue maximization marketing targets are set for each area with respect to quantity and 
pricing. In line with its expansion, the Company management will try to improve the image of 
the Company and the brand. Specific marketing budgets are kept for advertisements.
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The Company has a plan of controlling costs by optimizing the usage of alternate energy 
resources like Waste Heat Recovery (WHR), Refuse Derived Fuel (RDF) and also use of mix of 
local and imported coal.

For liquidity and gearing, cash flows are monitored on a daily basis to achieve the targets. On 
the other side, as discussed earlier, the Company has opened the LC for new line at the existing 
location. Due consideration has been given to leverage and gearing by using adequate mix debt 
and equity for this project. Timely progress of this project in an effective and efficient manner 

On the human resource side, we are developing a detailed training program for all levels of 
management. These trainings will be conducted based on the need assessment at the time of 
performance appraisal. 

Increase in power tariff during the year is an area of major concern. Availability of power at 
competitive rates is a critical factor. We will try to manage this through alternate energy options. 
We are expecting stable interest rates during next year in view of improved macroeconomic 
indicators.

Overall we are positive about the future and hope that the Company and the industry as a whole 
will play a key role in the economic development of the Country in the years to come.

Additional Information
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Critical Performance Indicators

Cash Generated From 
Operating Activities 1,757

 (Rs. Millions) 
 Decrease by

8.99%

Interim & Final Cash 
Dividend 306 
(Rs. Millions)

Increase by
28%

Wealth Distributed 7,726
(Rs. Millions) 

 Increase by 
6.48% 

Gross Profit 2,103
(Rs. Millions)

 Decrease by 
3.99%

Sales 6,451 
      (Rs. Millions) 

Increase by
   2.49%

Breakup Value 
Per Share 46.27 (Rs.)

Increase by
19.25% 

Earnings Per Share 12.52 
(Rs.)

Increase by
7.19%

Profit after Tax 1,316
(Rs. Millions)

Increase by
7.21%

Profit before Tax 1,688
(Rs. Millions)

                       Increase by
                       6.47%

 Market Price Per Share 
as at June 30, 2014  

65.46 (Rs.)

Increase by
 12.49% 

The above are the Critical Performance Indicators being used by the management 
and are expected to remain valid in future.
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Quarterly Performance Analysis

23% 22% 21% 21% 

26% 31% 32% 33% 
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Sales Gross profit Profit after tax 

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter 

Profit before tax 

1st QtrParticulars 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr

(Rupees in ‘000)

4th Qtr Total

        

          

       

Profit after taxation  272,714   437,120   325,646   280,688   1,316,168 
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Quarterly Results Analysis

Quarter 1

season and Ramazan. Similarly 
export to Afghanistan also 
remained slow due to uncertain 
political situation.

mainly due to inflationary trend 
and depreciation of Pak Rupees 
against US Dollar.

due to low gross profit margin i.e. 
30% as compared to other 
quarters of the year.

because of less dispatches and 
clinker production as compared 
to other quarters.

Quarter 2

increased sales by 13% as 
compared to 1st quarter.

2nd quarter mainly on account of 
operational efficiencies involved 
and low fuel & power cost, as the 

was the highest during the 
quarter.

55% mainly due to increase in 
gross profit margin.

mainly due to increase in sales, 
reduction in cost of sales and 
finance cost.

Quarter 3

3rd quarter which adversely 
affected local and export sales.

mainly because of unabsorbed 
fixed cost, arising due to plant 
shut down.

low gross profit margin.

impact due to aforementioned 
reasons.

Quarter 4

this quarter and 14% rise in 
turnover was experienced as 
compared to 3rd quarter.

due to charging of fuel price 
adjustment arrears and increase 
in WAPDA tariff.

the above reasons.

as compared to last quarter due 
to low gross profit margin.
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Risks and Opportunities

The Board of Cherat Cement is principally committed to minimize all possible risks and 
identification and utilization of potential events that may affect the Company. This principle 
keeps the Company within its risk appetite and helps to achieve its corporate objectives. 

RISKS
As with any business scenario, the Company is susceptible to various risks; however, through 
comprehensive planning and an acute business understanding of the management, the 
Company continues to identify and mitigate risks. The Company maintains an established 
control framework comprising clear structures, authority limits and accountabilities, well 
implemented policies and procedures and budgeting for review processes. 

which after detailed deliberations and with improvement suggestions are submitted to the Board 
of Directors. 

Following are the major risks which may affect our business operations and mitigating strategies 
for controlling these risks:

Rise in Energy Costs: The energy cost component is a substantial part of the overall cost of 
production in our Company i.e. above 50% on average. Hence any change/rise in coal prices 
or upward movement of electricity tariff would hurt margins of the Company as a whole. 
Mitigant: It has been witnessed since 2010 that the prices of coal have started decreasing after 
touching its peak. Further to the declined coal prices, the Company is already making efforts on 

solid waste as a source of fuel to substitute some of the coal used presently. This event can 
further cut down on our costs of production resulting in higher margins. However, the Company 
is already benefiting significantly from its Waste Heat Recovery project and almost one third of 
its electricity is generated free of cost. 

Strong Reliance on Government Development Programs: The main growth engine for the sector 
is the allocation made towards Public Social Development Program (“PSDP”) funds by the 
Government of Pakistan in its annual budget. The funds are primarily used towards the 
development of infrastructure projects. Mitigant: The trend in previous years has been to 
allocate a substantial amount towards PSDP at the time of budget announcement which is not 
consumed fully as the year progresses to absorb the growing government expenditures in other 
areas. With increased infrastructure spending in the last two years, local cement production has 
also witnessed an improvement while the Government has announced PKR 1,175bn towards 
PSDP for the year 2014-15. Out of this, PKR 650 bn has been allocated to provinces and PKR 
525 bn for the Federal Government. The current government is focusing on infrastructure
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development projects and its positive impact has already started to reflect in the local cement 
markets. 

Afghanistan, the sustainability of Pakistani cement has become more challenging due to which 
export sales of the Company have declined. Mitigant: The Company enjoys the benefit of the 
strategic location of its production plant near Nowshera, about 52 kilometers away from 
Peshawar, near the Pak Afghan border. Due to its proximity to the border, the Company incurs 
considerably lower distribution costs than our competitors. Reduction in distribution costs 
allows the Company with a margin available to reduce its selling prices in order to make the 
Company further competitive to export cement to Afghanistan at lower prices in order to 
compete with the low cost Iranian cement. Further, Cherat is a premium brand in Afghanistan 
which helps us to get better margins.

Credit Risk: Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a 

exposure to credit risk is minimal as the Company receives advance against sales.

Working Capital Management: Risk of increase in the cost of borrowing may limit the avenues 
for availability of sufficient working capital. Mitigate: Management has addressed the risk of 
shortage of working capital by availing the sufficient lines from the diversified financial 
institutions in order to meet the short term finance requirements of the Company. 

(Additional details of financial risk management and objectives are provided in the notes to the 
financial accounts).

OPPORTUNITIES
The management of the Company always focuses to capitalize on its experience and strategy to 

concentrates to utilize existing and potential opportunities confronted by the Company. This 
has resulted in the decision of expanding the operations of the Company through installation of 
production line two in near future.  

entrepreneurial activities. The Company is committed to use existing products and new 
solutions in order to systematically enhance our growth and strengthen our position in global 
markets. Investing in new projects and increasing the productivity of existing ones are key 
elements for future organic growth. In the year under review, we strengthened the basis for 
further growth in the coming years by making selective investments in our existing businesses 
and developing innovations that support in achievement of Company's stated vision.
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Cherat Cement has a well conceived and implemented IT 
Governance Policy which seeks to ensure that IT is aligned with 
Cherat's organizational goals and strategies and delivers value to the 
organization. The policy is designed to promote effective, efficient, 
timely, and informed decision-making concerning Cherat's IT 
investments and operations. Specifically the policy aims to establish 
the IT governance structure and its associated procedures, roles, and 
responsibilities, as a critical component of the overall IT Management 
(ITM) Framework, which guides the management, implementation, 
and monitoring of IT investments for Cherat. 

add value to the organization; 

achieving those goals; 

technology decisions and managing initiatives; 

technology initiatives; 

technology priorities; 

allocation; 

information technology and other technology related policies, 
and 

Department and end users.

IT Governance Policy
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An important aspect of accountability and transparency is 
a mechanism to enable all individuals to voice concerns 

internally in a responsible and effective manner when they 
discover information which they believe shows serious 

malpractice.

Our whistle blower policy is therefore fundamental 
to the organization's professional integrity. In 
addition, it reinforces the value the organization 

places on staff to be honest and respected members 
of their individual professions. It provides a method of properly addressing bona 
fide concerns that individuals within the organization might have, while also 
offering whistle blowers protection from victimization, harassment or disciplinary 
proceedings.

It should be emphasized that the policy is intended to assist only those individuals 
who believe they have discovered malpractice or impropriety. It is not designed to 
question financial or business decisions taken by the organization nor should it be 
used to reconsider any matters which have been investigated under the harassment, 
grievance or disciplinary policies and procedures.

Fundamental elements of our Whistle Blower Policy are highlighted below:

a result of any disclosure, where the disclosure is made in good faith and is not 
made maliciously or for personal gain.

and other parties involved.

identity of the whistle blower is protected at all stages in any internal matter or 
investigation. 

wrongdoer dependant on the results of the investigation.

concern in good faith. However, any individual found responsible for making 
allegations maliciously or in bad faith may be subject to disciplinary action.

During the year no whistle blowing incidence was reported under the mentioned 
procedure. 

Whistle Blower Policy
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Cherat Cement is effectively implementing the 
policy to ensure the safety of records. All records 
must be retained for as long as they are required to 
meet legal, administrative, operational, and other 
requirements of the Company. The main purposes of 
the Company Policy are:

created, managed, retained, and disposed off in 
an effective and efficient manner;

Company's records through the development of 
a coordinated Records Management Program;

of permanent value to support both protection of 
privacy and freedom of information services 
throughout the Company to promote collegiality 
and knowledge sharing;

and disposed off in accordance with the record 
retention policy and retention schedules and

Company, not by the individual or team.

Safety of Records Policy
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A Conflicts of Interest Policy has been developed by Cherat Cement to 
provide a framework for all directors of the Company (“Directors”) to 
disclose actual, potential or perceived conflicts of interest.

The policy provides guidance on what constitutes a conflict of interest 
and how it will be managed and monitored by the Company.

The policy is applicable to Directors as the Company strongly believes 
that a Director owes certain fiduciary duties, including the duties of 
loyalty, diligence and confidentially to the Company which requires 
that the Directors act in good faith on behalf of the Company and to 

own or others interest.
 
Management of Conflict of Interest

The Company stands fully committed to the transparent disclosures, 
management and monitoring of actual potential or perceived conflicts 
of interest. All Directors under the policy are obligated and have a duty 
to avoid actual, potential or perceived conflicts of interest.

Any Director with personal interest, relationship or responsibility 
which conflicts with the interest of the Company or its shareholders 
shall excuse himself or herself from any discussions on the matter that 
would give rise to conflict of interest and, if necessary, from the Board 
meeting, or applicable part thereof.

Conflict of Interest Policy
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Cherat Cement's Social and Environmental Policy envisages an active 
commitment and participation on the part of the Company in various 
social work initiatives as part of its corporate social responsibility. Being 
a conscientious member of the corporate community, the Company 
contributes generously to various social and charitable causes including 
towards health and education sectors. In this regard, it has worked with 
many reputable organizations and NGOs in Pakistan.

(Internaly Displaced People). The employees of the Company had donated 
one day salary to help flood relief activities. Cherat Cement has always stood 
by the people of Pakistan in their hour of need and shall always continue to 
do so. 
 
Cherat Cement is fully committed to acting in an environmentally responsible 
manner. To achieve this result, we:

1. Ensure our product and operations comply with relevant environmental 
legislation and regulations.

2. Maintain and continually improve our environmental management 
systems to conform to the ISO14001 Standard or more stringent 
requirements as dictated by specific markets or local regulations.

3. Operate in a manner that is committed to continuous improvement 
in environmental sustainability through recycling, conservation of 
resources, prevention of pollution, product development, and promotion 
of environmental responsibility amongst our employees.

4. There is no emission of hazardous material from Cherat Cement Factory.

5. Inform suppliers, including contractors, of our environmental expectations 
and require them to adopt environmental management practices aligned 
with these expectations.

Social and Environmental
Responsibility Policy
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The Company is committed to the manufacturing of high quality cement. At each stage in the 
cement production process controlling the chemical composition is a priority. All our 

The consistency of performance of the cement is vital for our customers so the raw materials, 
intermediate and final products are regularly tested as part of the whole cement production 
process.  

Our Quality Management Process includes:

 

  “Raw Meal”

 

  of the clinker with gypsum and grinding aids

In-House Laboratory Testing
The key to comprehensive quality control is the use of an in-house laboratory. Having an 
in-house, state-of-the-art laboratory is absolutely necessary to manufacture superior quality 
cement. 

Our Quality Control laboratory is a primary component to achieve our mission of maintaining 
strict control over every aspect of manufacture and quality and is an integral piece of our ISO 

Our in-house laboratory allows for timely, accurate, cost-effective testing that ensures every 
product, from raw material to finished goods, meets all quality requirements. Cement is tested 
before being released for sale. Such stringent attention to quality control is extremely difficult to 
accomplish without a State-of-the-Art, in-house laboratory.

Cherat Cement’s State-of-the Art Quality Control Equipment include:
 
  real-time elemental analysis

 

Quality Management
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Our stakeholders extend valuable contribution 
towards our growth and existence. Procedure 

communication, good harmony and 
compliance with laws & regulations. We cannot 
truly execute our purpose without input from 
our stakeholders.

SHAREHOLDERS

revolves around good returns, profitability, 
growth and regulatory compliances. We 

through improvement in business mechanics, 
effective governance and corporate reporting 
framework.  Annual General Meetings and 
statutory reporting are the most effective means 
of our engagement with our shareholders.

Investors’ Grievance Policy

received either directly by the Corporate Department or during General Meetings are addressed 
by the Company Secretary. The Shareholders are given the information as desired by them as 
per the law well in time. All the written complaints are replied in writing. Our share registrar is 
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) which is leading name in the field. The 
Company has many old and loyal shareholders, which shows the trust of the Shareholders in 
the management of the Company.

AGM Proceedings

The last AGM was conducted at Cherat Cement site on Thursday, October 31, 2013 at 11 a.m. 
The meeting was properly organized and well attended by the Shareholders. The Shareholders 
appreciated the efforts made by the management in achieving the best ever results in the history 
of the Company. Shareholders raised different questions on the Financial Statements, especially 
with respect to power crisis, coal cost and future outlook of the Company. The questions were 
answered in detail by the management after which the Financial Statements were approved by 
the Shareholders. Shareholders also gave approval for appointment of EY Ford Rhodes Sidat 
Hyder & Company as external auditors and distribution of cash dividend.

Corporate Governance - 
Stakeholders’ Engagement
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DEALERS, CUSTOMERS, AND 
TRANSPORTERS

Sustaining and developing long term 
relationship with our dealers, customers and 

success. Their expectations are focused on 
product quality, pricing and service delivery.  
Our sales and marketing team remain in close 
contact to this segment of our stakeholders to 
resolve issues on a priority basis. We continue 
to engage with our dealers, customers and 
transporters through meetings and market visits 
and communications.

SUPPLIERS AND VENDORS

Efficient supplier network is a key for effective working capital management. To achieve this 
objective, we conduct market surveys to strengthen our bond with our suppliers and vendors. 
Our supply chain management team is in continuous contact with suppliers and vendors 
thorough meetings and correspondence to resolve all queries for an on time deliveries.  

BANKS AND OTHER LENDERS
We value our relationship with our financial partners and lenders. Financial risk management 
and business sustainability are few of the interests of this segment of stakeholders. Periodic 
briefings, Quarterly financial reporting, Head Office and Site visits are the main means for our 
engagement with this category of stakeholders.

REGULATORS
Our commitment to compliance with laws and regulations is evident from our Corporate and 
Legal team‘s continued efforts for efficient and effective legal and regulatory obedience. The 
engagement includes submission of periodic reports, responding to enquiries and meetings as 
and when required.

EMPLOYEES

revolve around work life balance, training and development and rewards. We have educational 
loan schemes, in-house and outside training programs and long-term employment reward 
schemes in place to value our employees as Human Capital. Employee meetings are on regular 
intervals in form of Annual get-togethers, celebrating sports day and team building activities.

INSTITUTIONAL INVESTORS AND ANALYSTS

Institutional investors regularly obtain general business briefings and financial reports from 
management. Formal meetings are also arranged whenever needed.
 
Without compromising the confidentiality, business analysts are provided with information and 
briefings as and when they require.
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The Board is assisted by two Committees, namely the Audit Committee and the Human Resource & 
Remuneration Committee, to support its decision-making in their respective domains:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Javaid Anwar Chairman
Mr. Akbarali Pesnani Member
Mr. Shehryar Faruque Member
Mr. Tariq Faruque Member

The Audit Committee comprises of three Non-Executive and one Independent Non-Executive Directors. 
One of the member of Audit Committee Mr. Akbarali Pesnani, is an MBA and Fellow Member of both 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and Institute of Managment Accountants of 
Pakistan (ICMAP). The Chief Executive Officer (CEO), the Chief Financial Officer (CFO), the Chief 
Internal Auditor (CIA) and the external auditor attend Audit Committee meetings by invitation. The Audit 
Committee also separately meets the Chief Internal Auditor (CIA) and external auditors at least once a 
year without the presence of the Management.
Meetings of the Audit Committee are held at least once every quarter. The Committee reviews the 
annual financial statements in presence of external auditors. The recommendations of the Audit 
Committee are then submitted for approval of financial results of the Company by the Board. During the 
year 2013-14, the Audit Committee held Four [4] meetings. The minutes of the meetings of the Audit 
Committee are provided to all the members, Directors and the Chief Financial Officer. The Chief 
Internal Auditor attends the Audit Committee meetings regularly and meets the Audit Committee 
without the presence of the Management, at least once a year, to point out various risks, their intensity 
and suggestions for mitigating risks and improvement areas. The business risks identified are then 
referred to the respective departments and mitigating actions are then implemented. 

Terms of reference of Audit Committee
The Board shall provide adequate resources and authority to enable the Audit Committee carry out its 
responsibilities effectively. The Audit Committee shall, inter alia, recommend to the Board of Directors 
the appointment of external auditors, their removal, audit fees, the provision by the external auditors of 
any service to the listed company in addition to audit of its financial statements. The Board of Directors 
shall give due consideration to the recommendations of the Audit Committee in all these matters and 
where it acts otherwise; it shall record the reasons thereof.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee shall also include the following:

b.  review of quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements of the listed company  prior to 
their approval by the Board of Directors, focusing on:

major judgmental areas;

Corporate Governance -
Additional Information
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c. review of preliminary announcement of results prior to publication.

d. facilitating the external audit and discussion with external auditors of major observations arising 
from interim and final audits and any matter that the auditors may wish to highlight (in the absence 
of management, where necessary);

f. ensuring coordination between the internal and external auditors of the listed company;

g. review of the scope and extent of internal audit and ensuring that the internal audit function has 
adequate resources and is appropriately placed within the li sted company;

h. consideration of major findings of internal investigations of activities characterized by fraud, 
corruption and abuse of power and management's response thereto; 

i. ascertaining that the internal control system including financial and operational controls, accounting 
systems for timely and appropriate recording  of purchases and sales, receipts and payments,  assets 
and liabilities and the reporting structure are adequate and effective; 

Board of Directors and internal audit reports; 

k. instituting special projects, value for money studies or other investigations on any matter specified by 
the Board of Directors, in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and to consider remittance 
of any matter to the external auditors or to any other external body; 

l. determination of compliance with relevant statutory requirements; 

HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

 Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi Chairman 

 Mr. Azam Faruque Member

 Mr. Shehryar Faruque Member

The Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (HR & RC) comprises of three members. The 
Chairman is a Non-Executive Director whereas the other two members are the Chief Executive Officer 
and a Non-Executive Director. Meetings are conducted at least annually or at such other frequency as 
the Chairman may determine. The minutes of the meetings of the HR & RC meeting are provided to all 
members and Directors. The Committee held two [2] meetings during the year.

Terms of Reference of Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

Objectives: The Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (HR & RC) shall consider and make 
recommendations to the Board of Directors on Cherat Cement Company Limited major human resource 
management policies, strategies and plans.

Composition: The HR & RC shall comprise of at least three directors majority of whom shall be 
Non-Executive Directors. The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) shall be included as a member of the HR & 
RC. One of the three members shall be appointed as Chairman of HR & RC by the BOD. 

Tenure: The tenure of HR & RC shall be for a period of 3 years.

Duties & Responsibilities: The HR & RC shall review the following areas and make its recommendations:
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 a) Major HR Policy frame work, including compensation structure

 b) Overall organizational structure

 c) Succession planning for key positions, including that of the CEO

 d) Examine the management strategy for training needs assessment for the overall growth of the 
organization

Quorum: The quorum of (HR & RC) meeting shall be two members.

Frequency of meetings: The (HR & RC) shall meet at least twice in a year or as required for a proper 
functioning of the Committee. 

Notice and Agenda: The Notice of the meeting shall be circulated by the Secretary (HR & RC) one week 
prior to the date of the meeting. The agenda for the meeting shall be developed by the management in 
consultation with Chairman (HR & RC). 

Minutes: Minutes of the meeting shall be prepared by the Secretary - (HR & RC) and circulated to the 
Members - (HR & RC) within fourteen days of the (HR & RC) meeting.

Attendance: (HR & RC) may invite any employee / independent expert to attend its meeting. The 
Secretary shall maintain an attendance record of all those attending the meetings. 

Reports to the BOD: (HR & RC) shall present the minutes including findings and recommendations of 
the (HR & RC) meeting to the BOD. (HR & RC) shall provide all and any related information required by 
the  BOD.

Amendments: The BOD may at any time amend these regulations or revoke any powers granted by it to 
the (HR & RC).

Records: All documentation related to the holding, proceedings and recommendations of the (HR & RC) 
shall be ensured by and stored with the Secretary - (HR & RC)

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Roles of Chairman and Chief Executive are clearly established in the Company. 

The post of Chairman is held by a Non-Executive Director. The Chairman is not involved in the 
day-to-day activities of the Company and is responsible for chairing the Board meetings.

The Chief Executive is responsible for the overall operations of the Company and takes all the managerial 
decisions. He draws a salary, which is approved by the Board. To ensure smooth functioning of the 
Company, the Chief Executive may delegate the authority to different functional heads.

DIRECTORS’ ORIENTATION AND TRAINING

All the directors of the Company are well experienced and have diverse backgrounds. At the time of 
induction of any new director, he or she is given proper orientation about the operations of the Company 

program to apprise the directors of their authorities and responsibilities. Two directors of the Company 
namely Mr. Azam Faruque and Mr. Tariq Faruque are also certified under the Board Development Series 
Program offered by Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG).

Corporate Governance -
Additional Information
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Report of the Audit Committee

Audit Committee

Mr. Javaid Anwar  Chairman
Mr. Akbarali Pesnani  Member
Mr. Shehryar Faruque  Member
Mr. Tariq Faruque  Member

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises 
of three Non-Executive and one Independent 
Non-Executive Director. The Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO), the Head of Internal Audit and the 
external auditor attend Audit Committee meetings 
by invitation. The Audit Committee also separately 
meets the external auditors at least once a year 
without the presence of the Management.

Meetings of the Audit Committee are held at least 
once every quarter. Four meetings of the Audit 
Committee were held during the year 2013-2014. 
Based on reviews and discussions in these 
meetings, the Audit Committee reports that:

1. The Company has adhered, without any 
material departure, with both the mandatory 
and voluntary provisions of the Stoc 
Exchanges of Pakistan, Code of Corporate 
Governance, Company's code of conduct and 
values and the best practices of governance 
throughout the year.

2. The Company has issued a Statement of 
Compliance with the Code of Corporate 
Governance which has also been reviewed 
and certified by the auditors of the Company.

3. The Audit Committee reviewed and approved 
the quarterly, half yearly and annual financial 
statements of the Company and 
recommended them for approval of the Board 
of Directors.

4. Appropriate accounting policies have been 
consistently applied. Applicable International 
Accounting Standards were followed in 
preparation of financial statements of the 
Company on a going concern basis, which 
present fairly the state of affairs, results of 
operations, cash flows and changes in equity 
of the Company.

5. Accounting estimates are based on reasonable 
and prudent judgment. Proper and adequate 
accounting records have been maintained by 
the Company in accordance with the 

reporting is consistent with management 
processes and adequate for shareholder 
needs.

6. The financial statements comply with the 

requirements of the Fourth Schedule to the 

International Accounting Standards and 
international Financial Reporting Standards 
notified by SECP. 

7. The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief 
Financial Officer have signed the financial 
statements of the Company. They 
acknowledge their responsibility for the true 
and fair presentation of the financial 
statements, accuracy of reporting, compliance 
with regulations and applicable accounting 
standards and establishment and maintenance 
of sound internal control system of the 
Company.

8. The Audit Committee has reviewed and 
approved all related party transactions.

sound in design and is continually evaluated 
for effectiveness and adequacy. 

10. For appraisal of internal controls and 
monitoring compliance, the Company has in 
place an appropriately staffed, Internal Audit 
department. The Audit Committee reviewed 
the resources of the Internal Audit department 
to ensure that they were adequate for the 
planned scope of the Internal Audit function.

11. The Audit Committee on the basis of the 
internal audit reports reviewed the adequacy 
of controls and compliance shortcomings in 
areas audited and discussed corrective actions 
in the light of management responses. This has 
ensured the continual evaluation of controls 
and improved compliance.

12. Head of Internal Audit Department has direct 
access to the Audit Committee.

13. The external auditors Ernst & Young Ford 
Rhodes Sidat Hyder and Co., Chartered 
Accountants were allowed direct access to the 
Audit Committee and necessary coordination 
with internal auditors was ensured. Major 
findings arising from audits and any matters 
that the external auditors wished to highlight 
were freely discussed with them.

By order of the Audit Committee

Javaid Anwar   
Chairman, Audit Committee
August 12, 2014

A
nnual R

eport 2014

69



2014 2013 (Restated)
14 Vs. 13

%
(Rupees

in Million)
13 Vs. 12

%
(Rupees

in Million)

Comments on Horizontal Analysis

Balance Sheet

Assets     
Non Current Assets  3,526 -    3,531 3 

      
Total Assets   6,431 27  5,065 8 
     
Equity & Liabilities     

Current Liabilities  881  13  782 (25) 
     
Equity & Liabilities 6,431 27 5,065 8 
     
Turnover & Profit     
     

Horizontal Analysis - Last Six Years

Balance Sheet

Current assets increased as compared to year 2013 due to short term investments made 

and gain on investments made.

Profit and Loss Account
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2012 2011 2010 2009
12 Vs. 11

%
(Rupees

in Million)
11 Vs. 10

%
(Rupees

in Million)
10 Vs. 09 

%
(Rupees

in Million)
09 Vs. 08 

%
(Rupees

in Million)

price and sale quantities except for the year 2010 when turnover was low due to low 
sale price and depressed demand.

Gross profit increased in the years 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 but current year showed 
a decline in gross profit by 4% due to increased cost of sales mainly due to increase in 
WAPDA tariff.

Operating profit increased in years 2011, 2012 and 2013 mainly due to better gross 
profit margin and also positively increased in the current year.

Finance cost decreased due to reduced gearing. Profit after tax increased due to 
reduction in expenses.

   
 3,422 (6) 3,647 1 3,618 6  3,400 28

  
4,711 (12) 5,365 10 4,857 2 4,743 8 

   
   

 1,040 (42)  1,800 11 1,622 51 1,071 (33)
   

4,711 (12)  5,365 10  4,857 2  4,743 8
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Comments on Vertical Analysis

Balance Sheet

equity share was increased over the years due to improved profits and reduction in debts.

Vertical Analysis - Last Six Years

2014 2013 (Restated)
(Rupees

in Million)
(Rupees

in Million)

Balance Sheet

Assets    
Non Current Assets  3,526  55  3,531  70 

    
Total Assets   6,431  100  5,065  100 
    
Equity & Liabilities    

Current Liabilities  881  14  782  16 
    
Equity & Liabilities  6,431  100  5,065  100 

Turnover & Profit    
    

% %
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Current assets were 45% of total assets of the company in the current year as compared 
to 30% in year 2013 which shows better liquidity position of the company.

Profit and Loss Account

Gross profit increased from 13% to 35% from year 2011 to 2013 and was 33% in year 
2014, mainly due to stable prices.

Operating profit was 8% of turnover in year 2011 which has increased to 27% in year 
2014 mainly due to improving gross profit margin.

2012 2011 2010 2009
(Rupees

in Million)
(Rupees

in Million)
(Rupees

in Million)
(Rupees

in Million)

 3,422  73  3,647  68  3,618  74  3,400  72

 4,711  100  5,365  100  4,857  100  4,743  100

 1,040  22 1,800  34  1,622  34  1,071  22

 4,711  100  5,365  100  4,857  100  4,743  100

% % % %
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Ratios

2014 2013
(Restated)

2012 2011 2010 2009

Profitability Ratios:     

Net Profit / (loss) Before Tax (Percentage)  26.16   25.18   10.47   1.30   (8.57)  5.63 

Return on Equity After Tax 

      
Liquidity Ratios:      

Cash to Current Liabilities   0.02   0.03   0.04   0.04   0.03   0.06 
Cash Flow from Operations to Sales  0.27   0.31   0.26   0.05   0.05   0.07 
      
Activity / Turnover Ratios:      

Inventory Turnover (Times)  11   11   12   13   14   16 

Operating Cycle  15   16   11   13   16   (20)
      
Investment / Market Ratios:      

E.P.S (After Tax)  12.52   11.68   4.57   0.72   (0.14)  1.67 

Dividend Yield Ratio  0.05   0.04   0.07   -     -     -   
Dividend Payout Ratio  0.24   0.21   0.44   -     -     -   

Cash Dividend per share  3.00   2.50   2.00   -     -     -   
Stock Dividend per share  0.10   -     -     -     -     -   

Break-up Value per share   46.27   38.80   28.75   24.40   23.50   23.73 
      
Capital Structure Ratios:      

Long Term Debts to Equity Ratio (Percentage)   3.54   5.57   24.73   34.60   30.57   32.66 

C
he

ra
t 

C
em

en
t 

C
om

pa
ny

 L
im

it
ed

74



Comments on Ratios

Profitability Ratios:
We experienced a positive growth in profitability ratios in the year 2012 – 
2013, by effectively making our efforts in maximum utilization of production 
capacity and as well as better sales mix. Therefore, the profitability results 
relatively remained constant in the current year. Besides this, a declining 
trend was experienced in export sales due to relative adverse political 
situation in our target country Afghanistan, however local sales had a 
growing impact. Apart from this, the Company is benefitted from applying 
various cost saving measures i.e. WHR and alternative fuels (TDF, RDF) etc. 

Liquidity Ratios:
The liquidity condition of the Company remained positive, mainly due to 
increased profitability.

Activity / Turnover Ratios:
This progressively improved as compared to year 2010, due to better working 
capital management.

Investment / Market Ratios:
Due to lowest margin in year 2010, Earning per Share was adverse. After 
recovery of sales price in 2011, investment / market ratios started improving 
and resulted in positive Earning per Share, thereafter generating best results in 
the year 2013 and maintaining stability in the current year 2014.

Capital Structure Ratios:
Year 2014 proved to be the best in the history of our company due to early 
repayments of long term debt and less utilization of running finance and as a 
result mark – up charge also decreased this year thus improving the capital 
structure. Capital Structure ratios got better as compared to year 2010 when 
financial leverage ratio was also high. 
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

 

 

Income tax paid  (162,218)  (68,117)

Long term loans, advances and deposits - net  851   1,612 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Additions to operating property, plant and equipment  (524,022)  (108,808)

Short-term investment  (1,200,000)  -   

Dividend received  5,317   1,662 

Net cash used in investing activities  (1,373,204)  (426,066)

  

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Long-term loans  -   (885,122)

Dividend paid  (233,516)  (277,102)

Finance cost paid  (21,170)  (155,374)

 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (8,432)  (12,180)

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year  25,548   37,728 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  17,116   25,548

Cash Flow Statement - Direct Method

2014 2013
(Restated)

(Rupees `000)
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Summary - Last Six Years

      

Summary of Balance Sheet     

      

Assets      

Non-current Assets  3,526   3,531   3,422   3,647   3,618   3,400 

      

Total Assets   6,431   5,065   4,711   5,365   4,857   4,743 

      

Equity & Liabilities      

Current Liabilities  881   782   1,040   1,800   1,622   1,071 

      

Equity & Liabilities 6,431   5,065   4,711   5,365   4,857   4,743 

Summary of Profit & Loss

Turnover & Profit      

2014 2013
(Restated)

2012 2011 2010 2009

(Tons in ‘000)

(Rupees in Million)

3,526  

6,431  

 881  

 

6,431  
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Summary of Cash Flow Statement -
Last Six Years

(Rupeees in Million)

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Summary Of Cash Flows       
     

      

Change in cash and cash equivalents  (8)  (12)  (33)  17   (7)  (5)

Cash & cash equivalents - Year end  17   26   38   71   54   61 

in current year 2014 due to increase in payment of taxes, as tax losses have fully been utilized up till last 
year 2013.

Cash flow from investing activities increased in current period due to short term investments made. 
However it was low in the years 2011 and 2012 as no major capital expenditure was undertaken. 

Cash flow from financing activities increased in years 2012 and 2013 due to mark-up payment against 
long term loan acquired. However it declined in current year 2014, as substantial amount of loan has 
been paid off.

Comments on Cash Flow Statement
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DuPont Analysis

Interest
Burden / 
Efficiency

98.33%

Tax 
Burden /
Efficiency

77.98%

Leverage

1.32

RoE

27.00%

Operating
Margin

26.61%

Asset
Turnover

1.00

2014

Interest
Burden / 
Efficiency

93.57%

Tax 
Burden /
Efficiency

77.45%

Leverage

1.37

RoE

33.10%

Operating
Margin

26.91%

Asset
Turnover

1.24

2013
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Graphical Presentations
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Graphical Presentations
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Wealth Generated     
    

  7,725,763   100.00 7,256,120  100.00
     
Distribution of Wealth     
    

Marketing, selling and administrative expenses  233,835  3.03  320,032  4.41

To society / donations  3,542 0.05 2,378  0.03

  7,725,763  100.00  7,256,120  100.00

Distribution of Wealth 2014

 Marketing, Selling and Administrative Expenses  3.03%

 To Government as Taxes  20.31%

 To Providers of Finances as Financial Charges  0.37%

 To Society / Donations  0.05%

 Retained within the Business  17.03%

Statement of Value Addition and 
Distribution of Wealth

2014 2013
Rs. in ‘000 %ageRs. in ‘000 %age

Distribution of Wealth 2013

 

 Marketing, Selling and Administrative Expenses  4.41%

 To Providers of Finances as Financial Charges  1.50%

 To Society / Donations  0.03%
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This statement is being presented to comply with the 
Code of Corporate Governance (CCG) contained in 

and Islamabad Stock Exchanges for the purpose of 
establishing a framework of good governance, whereby 
a listed company is managed in compliance with the 
best practices of corporate governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in 
the CCG in the following manner:

1. The company encourages representation of 
independent non-executive directors and directors 
representing minority interests on its Board of 
Directors. At present the board includes:

 The independent director meets the criteria of 
independence under clause i (b) of the Code of 
Corporate Governance.

2. The directors have confirmed that none of them 
is serving as a director on more than seven listed 
companies, including this company (excluding 
the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies 
where applicable).

3. All the resident directors of the Company are 
registered as taxpayers and none of them has 
defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking 
company, a DFI or an NBFI or, being a member of 
a stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter 
by that stock exchange.

4. A casual vacancy that occurred on the Board on 
17.12.2013 was filled up by the directors within 
13 days.

5. The company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” 
and has ensured that appropriate steps have been 
taken to disseminate it throughout the Company 
along with its supporting policies and procedures.

6. The board has developed a vision / mission 
statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 
policies of the Company. A complete record of 
particulars of significant policies along with the 
dates on which they were approved or amended 
has been maintained.

7. All the powers of the board have been duly 
exercised and decisions on material transactions, 
including appointment and determination of 
remuneration and terms and conditions of 
employment of the CEO, other executive and 
non-executive directors, have been taken by the 
board.

8. The meetings of the board were presided over by 
the chairman and, in his absence, by a director 
elected by the board for this purpose and the board 
met atleast once every quarter. Written notices 
of the board meetings, along with agenda and 
working papers, were circulated atleast seven days 
before the meetings. The minutes of the meetings 
were appropriately recorded and circulated.

professionally qualified and experienced persons 
and are well aware of their duties and their 
responsibilities. Further, an orientation course for 
Directors was arranged by the Company to apprise 
Directors of their duties and responsibilities. Two 
Directors of the Company are also certified under 
the Board Development Series Program offered by 
Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG).

10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, 
Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, 
including their remuneration and terms and 
conditions of employment.

in compliance with the requirements of the Code 
of Corporate Governance and fully describes the 
salient matters required to be disclosed.

12. The financial statements of the Company were duly 
endorsed by CEO and CFO before approval of the 
board.

Statement of Compliance 
with the Code of Corporate Governance

Category Names

Mr. Omar Faruque
Mr. Akbarali Pesnani 
Mr. Shehryar Faruque 
Mr. Tariq Faruque 
Mr. Aamir Amin (NIT)
Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi

Independent
Director

Mr. Javaid Anwar

Executive
Director

Non-Executive
Director

Mr. Azam Faruque
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13. The Directors, CEO and Executives do not hold any 
interest in the shares of the Company other than 
that disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

14. The Company has complied with all the corporate 
and financial reporting requirements of the Code of 
Corporate Governance.

15. The board has formed an Audit Committee. It 
comprises of four members who are non-executives 
directors. The Chairman of the committee is an 
independent director.

16. The meetings of the audit committee were held 
atleast once every quarter prior to approval of 
interim and final results of the Company and as 
required by the CCG. The terms of reference of the 
committee have been formed and advised to the 
committee for compliance.

17. The board has formed an HR and Remuneration 
Committee. It comprises of three members, of 
whom two are non-executive directors and the 
chairman of the committee is a non executive 
director. 

18. The board has set up an effective internal audit 
function.

confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory 

rating under the quality control review programme 
of the ICAP, that they or any of the partners of the 
firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold 
shares of the Company and that the firm and all 
its partners are in compliance with International 
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on 
code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

20. The statutory auditors or the persons associated 
with them have not been appointed to provide 
other services except in accordance with the listing 
regulations and the auditors have confirmed that 
they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

interim/final results, and business decisions, which 

securities, was determined and intimated to 
directors, employees and stock exchange(s).

22. Material / price sensitive information has been 
disseminated among all market participants at 
once through stock exchange(s).

24. We confirm that all other material principles 
enshrined in the Code of Corporate Governance 
have been complied with.

Statement of Compliance
with the Best Practices of Transfer Pricing

The Company has fully complied with the best practices of Transfer Pricing as contained in the Listing Regulations 
of the Stock Exchanges.

Karachi: August 15, 2014

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Omar Faruque 
Chairman

Karachi: August 15, 2014

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Omar Faruque 
Chairman
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We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code 
of Corporate Governance (the Code) prepared by the Board of Directors of Cherat Cement Company 
Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2014 to comply with the requirements of Listing 

Islamabad Stock Exchange Limited, where the Company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether 

Code and report if it does not and to highlight any con-compliance with the requirements of the Code. 

prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.
 
As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the 
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit 

covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the 

 
The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of 
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval its related party 
transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in 

proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured 
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board 
of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of 

best practices contained in the Code as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2014.

Review Report to the Members
on Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance

Chartered Accountants
Audit Engagement Partner: Riaz A. Rehman Chamdia

Karachi: August 15, 2014

Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes Sidat Hyder
Chartered Accountants
Progressive Plaza, Beaumont Road 
P.O.Box 15541, Karachi 75530, Pakistan

www.ey.com
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Following are the major factors which might affect the share price of the Company 
in the stock exchanges:
 
Energy Crises 
Due to the on-going energy crises, supply of electricity is often disrupted to 
industrial undertakings. Accordingly, the entire manufacturing industry is facing 
operational difficulties. This forces the Company to resort the expensive alternatives 

 
Law and Order Situation 
Unstable law and order situation often results in disruption of business activities and 

 
Change in Government Policies 
Any change in government policies related to cement sector may effect the share 
price of the Company. If policy change is positive than share price will increase, 
otherwise vice versa.
 
Plant Operations 
Stable plant operations lead to higher production and better production efficiencies. 
Issues at production negatively affect the financial performance of the Company 
and therefore, also affect the share price.
  
Consumer Demand 
Increase in demand of cement may result in increase in market price of bag which 
will contribute towards better profitability and Earning Per Share (EPS), which will 
ultimately increase the share price.
 
Variation in Variable Cost 
Any Increase in variable cost (mainly includes Coal, Power and Raw Material Cost) 
may badly effect the gross margins and will resultantly fall in the profitability and 
fall in EPS. This may badly effect the market price of the share downward.
 
Variation in Fixed Cost 
Fixed cost which mainly consists of Financial Charges, Exchange losses, and other 
overheads. If SBP discount rate goes up, rupee devaluation occurs and increase in 
inflation happens than net profitability of the Company will be effected and will 
have negative effect on the EPS which results into fall in share prices. If the said 
factors happen on the positive sides than share price will improve.

Share Price Sensitivity Analysis
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FFAGM: A mandatory, public yearly gathering of a publicly traded company's executives, 
directors and interested shareholders.
 
HS&E: Health, Safety and Environment.

EBITDA: Earnings before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization.

Return on Equity (ROE): The value found by dividing the Company's net income by its net 
assets (ROE measures the amount a company earns on investments).

Current Ratio: The current ratio indicates a company's ability to meet short-term debt 
obligations.

Acid Test Ratio: The ratio of liquid assets to current liabilities.

Operating Cycle: The average time between purchasing or acquiring inventory and receiving 
cash proceeds from its sale.

Earnings Per Share: Earnings found by dividing the net income of the Company by the number 
of shares of common outstanding stock.

Price-Earnings Ratio (P/E): The ratio found by dividing market price per share by earnings per 
share (This ratio indicates what investors think of the firm's earnings' growth and risk 
prospects).

Dividend Payout Ratio: The ratio found by dividing the annual dividends per share by the 
annual earnings per share.

Long Term Debt-to-Equity Ratio: The ratio found by dividing long-term debt by the equity (all 
assets minus debts) held in stock (This is a measure of financial risk).

IASB: International Accounting Standards Board.

IFRS: International Financial Reporting Standard.

IFRIC: International Financial Reporting Issues Committee.

Amortisation: To charge a regular portion of an expenditure over a fixed period of time. 

Joint Venture: A business arrangement in which two or more parties agree to pool their 
resources for the purpose of accomplishing a specific task.

KIBOR: Karachi Inter Bank Offer Rate.

Spread: Rate charged by the bank over KIBOR.

Gearing Ratio:  Compares some form of owner's equity (or capital) to borrow funds. 

ISO 14001: A standard for the management of environmental matters that is widely used in 
various parts of the world.

Glossary of Terms
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ASSETS 
 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

 

 

 
CURRENT ASSETS 

 

  
TOTAL ASSETS
 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
 
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 

 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 22 
  
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(Rupees in ‘000)

Balance Sheet
as at June 30, 2014

 2014Note 2013
(Restated) (Restated)

July 01June 30June 30

2012

Chief �xecutive
Azam Faruque

Chairman
Omar Faruque



92

C
he

ra
t 

C
em

en
t 

C
om

pa
ny

 L
im

it
ed

Turnover – net

 

Earnings per share – basic

 

for the year ended June 30, 2014
 

2014Note

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013
(Restated)

Chief �xecutive
Azam Faruque

Chairman
Omar Faruque
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Total comprehensive income for the year 

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended June 30, 2014

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013
(Restated)

Chief �xecutive
Azam Faruque

Chairman
Omar Faruque
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Adjustment for: 

 

Increase in current assets 

Increase in current liabilities 

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

 

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended June 30, 2014

2014Note

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013
(Restated)

Chief �xecutive
Azam Faruque

Chairman
Omar Faruque



A
nnual R

eport 2014

95

Balance as at July 01, 2012 – 
   as previously reported

�ffect of chan�e in accountin� 

Balance as at July 01, 2012 – 
   as restated

�nterim cash dividend for the

Balance as at June 30, 2013 955,801 50,900 420,000 2,251,298 (2,939) 2,668,359 33,969 2,753,228 3,709,029

Balance as at July 01, 2013 – 
   as restated

�nterim cash dividend for the year

�ssuance of bonus shares 
   �  1 share for every 10

 

Balance as at June 30, 2014 

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended June 30, 2014

Issued, 
Subscribed 
and Paid-up 

Capital

Capital                   
Reserve

General 
Reserve

Un-
appropriated 

Actuarial 
(loss) / gain 

Sub-total

Unrealised 
gain on 

available
for-sale 

securities

Total Total

Revenue Reserves

Reserves

(Rupees in ‘000)

Chief �xecutive
Azam Faruque

Chairman
Omar Faruque
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2014

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

province.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

2.2 Accounting convention

2.3 New, revised and amended standards and interpretations

  Improvements to accounting standards issued by the IASB

     information
 

 

     �nstruments
 

     Assets and Liabilities



A
nnual R

eport 2014

97

2.4 Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

 

       (Amendment) 01 January 2014

 

Effective date 
(annual periods

beginning
on or after)

IASB Effective date 
(annual periods

beginning
on or after)

Standard or interpretation

Standard 
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expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under current circumstances. Revisions to 
accountin� estimates are reco�nised prospectively.

mortality rates.

2.5.2 Interest in a Joint Venture

and loss account.

venture.

2.5.3     Operating property, plant and equipment

technical resources available to the Company. Any chan�e in the estimates in the future mi�ht affect the 

on the depreciation char�e and impairment.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2014
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 Current 

contin�ency. 

�eferred tax is provided in full usin� the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences arisin� 

�eferred tax liabilities are �enerally reco�nised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax 

be utilised.

based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. �n this 

2.5.5 Stock-in-trade, stores, spare parts and loose tools

estimated sellin� price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and 

2.5.6 Contingencies

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Property, plant and equipment
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�ains or loss
and loss account.

3.1.1 Intangible assets

assets. 

3.2 Investments

3.2.1 Interest in a Joint Venture

is impaired. �f this is the case the Company calculates the amount of impairment loss as the difference 

venture.

3.2.2 Available-for-sale securities

may be sold in response to the need for li�uidity or chan�es in interest rates.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2014
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date.

3.3 Stores, spare parts and loose tools

stated at invoice value plus other char�es paid thereon upto the balance sheet date.

3.4 Stock-in-trade 

sheet date.

     manufacturin� overheads

      to the balance sheet date

esti
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3.5 Trade debts

3.6        Trade and other payables

3.7 Financial instruments

3.8 Foreign currency translations

the translations at the year end exchan�e rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forei�n 

3.9 Cash and cash equivalents

3.10 Revenue recognition 

and revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable. 

3.10.1 Sale of goods 

physical delivery. �t is recorded at net of trade discounts and volume rebates. 

3.10.2 Other income

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2014
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3.1

3.11.1 Gratuity scheme

 

been restated and presented accordin�ly.
         

 As of July 01, 2012: 

 

 As of and for the year ended June 30, 2013: 

 

 As of and for the year ended June 30, 2014: 

(Rupees in ‘000)
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3.11.2 Provident fund

3.12 Provisions

3.13.1 Current

assessments framed durin� the year for such years.

3.13.2    Deferred

�eferred income tax is provided usin� the liability method for all temporary differences at the balance 

purposes. 

�eferred tax liabilities are reco�nised for all taxable temporary differences.  � eferred income tax asset 

differences and tax losses can be utilized.

�eferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the 

deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2014
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�eferre d income tax relatin� to items reco�nised directly in other comprehensive income is reco�nised in 

receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

is a currently enforceable le�al ri�ht to offset the reco�nised amounts and there is an intention to settle on 
a net basis or to realize the assets and settle liabilities simultaneously. �ncomes and expenses arisin� from 
such assets and liabilities are also offset accordin�ly.

3.15      Borrowing costs

3.16  Impairment

loss account.

3.17 Related party transactions

3.18 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

these are approved.

3.19 Functional and presentation currency

Currency.
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4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  

Operatin� pr

4.1  Operating property, plant and equipment 

4.1.1

2014Note
(Rupees in ‘000)

2013

   and laboratory

(Rupees in ‘000)

As at
July 01,
2013

COST DEPRECIATION

2014
Description

As at
July 01,
2013

Depreciation
rate % per

annum

Book 
Value
as at

June 30,
2014

As at
June 30,

2014

As at
June 30,

2014

Adjustment
on

disposals

For the
year

Additions /
(disposals)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2014
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4.1.2 Reconciliation of book value:

4.1.3 

2014Note

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013

   and laboratory

(Rupees in ‘000)

As at
July 01,
2012

COST DEPRECIATION

2013
Description

As at
July 01,
2012

Depreciation
rate % per

annum

Book 
Value
as at

June 30,
2013

As at
June 30,

2013

As at
June 30,

2013

Adjustment
on

disposals

For the
year

Additions /
(disposals)
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4.1.4

 

 Vehicles  

         

         

          

             

 

          

            

           

 
 

          outside party

 
 Aggregate of operating property, plant 
    and equipment disposed-off having 
    book value below Rs. 50,000/- each  

 2014  

 2013  

Cost
Sale

proceeds Gain
Mode of
disposal Particulars of buyersDescription

Book
value

(Rupees in ‘000)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2014
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Description

 Balance as at 
    June 30, 2012

 Capital expenditure

  
 Balance as at
    June 30, 2013 
  
 Capital expenditure 

  
 Balance as at
    June 30, 2014

4.2.1

 
4.2.2

5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Building 
on

leasehold
land

Power 
and other

installations

Motor
vehicles

Quarry,
factory

and
laboratory
equipment

Furniture
 and Total

Plant and 
machinery Computers

(Rupees in ‘000)

4.2 Movement of Capital work-in-progress

 

 2014

 2013

Amortisation
Rate %

per annum

As at
July 01Description

As at
July 01

For the
year

As at
June 30

Book
value as at

June 30
Additions
during the

year

As at
June 30

(Rupees in ‘000)

Cost Amortisation
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2014

5.1 The amortisation for the year has been allocated as follows: 

6 LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS  

�nvestment in related parties 
 

6.1 Movement of interest in a joint venture – under equity method 

�nvestment made durin� the year  

 

6.1.1

6.1.2

Administrative expenses 

6.1.3
and

2014Note

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013
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6.2 Available-for-sale securities – at fair value

O

7 LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES – secured, 
   considered good

2014 

2013 

7.2 

7.3

loans are  secured a�ainst the provident fund balances of the respective employees.

8           STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS 

2014Note

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013

(Rupees in ‘000)

Opening 
balance as at 

July 01
Disbursement

Closing
balance as at 

June 30
Repayment
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2014

9 STOCK-IN-TRADE 

 

10 LOANS AND ADVANCES – considered good 

 

11 TRADE DEPOSITS, SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS  

    AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

 

 

 Accrued return on investments   

  

 

2014Note

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013

2014Note

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013 2012
(Restated)(Restated)
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(Restated)(Restated)

 
 
  
 

employees. Actuarial valuation of the scheme is carried out every year and the latest actuarial valuation 

 

 Staff Gratuity Fund (Asset) / Liability: 
 

 
 

 Total re-measurements chargeable in other 
   comprehensive income:
 

 Movement in net (asset) / liability recognised in the
   balance sheet: 
 

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013 2012
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2014

Movement in the fair value of plan assets: 

Principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Comparisons for past years: 
As at June 30 

2014

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

(Rupees in ‘000)

(Percentage)

2013

2013

2012

2012 2011 2010

(Restated)(Restated)
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Composition of plan assets is as follows: 

12     SHORT-TERM INVESTEMENTS 

13    CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

Cash in hand 

13.1 

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013 2012

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013

2014

Units

2013

Note
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14       SHARE CAPITAL

14.1  Authorised capital 

 
 

 
14.2  Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

 

 

 

 

 
15 RESERVES 
 
15.1 Capital reserve
 

Limited.
 
15.2 Fair value gain / (loss) on available-for-sale securities
 

relevant accountin� standard.

2014

Number of shares

2013 2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013

2014

(Number of Shares)

2013

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2014
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16       LONG-TERM FINANCING – secured 

17    LONG-TERM DEPOSITS – unsecured 

�

18       DEFERRED TAXATION 

�eferre

2014Note

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013

Note 2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2014

19        TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

 C

 

19.1 Provident Fund 
 

 

 
 Percentage of investment made
 
 
 

2014
(Un-Audited)

(Rupees in ‘000)

(Rupees in ‘000)

(Percentage)

2013
(Un-Audited)

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013 2012
(Restated)(Restated)

Note
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19.3 As

20 ACCRUED MARK-UP  

21 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS – secured

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013Note

Note 2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013
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21.1

remains unutilized at the year end.
  
22     CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS  

22.1 Contingencies  

22.1.1

�ivin� any consideration to the facts of the case and the factual and le�al submissions of the Company. 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2014
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22.1.2

22.1.3

manufacturers.

22.1.4

co�nised in 

22.2 Commitments 

Letters of credit issued by commercial 

23        TURNOVER – net 

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013
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24        COST OF SALES 
 

 R

 

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013
(Restated)

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2014

Note
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25      DISTRIBUTION COSTS 

26      ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013

Note

Note
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26.1

27 OTHER EXPENSES 

27.1 Auditors’ Remuneration 

27.2

28 OTHER INCOME 

 Others 

29 FINANCE COSTS 

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2014

Note

Note
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30 TAXATION 
 

assessed.

 

 

 

 

 

 

31 EARNINGS PER SHARE   
 

 

32    FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013

(Restated)
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and investment of excess li�uidity. �t is the Company�s policy that no tradin� in derivatives for speculative 

32.1       Market risk

32.1.1 Interest rate risk

functional currency.

improved li�uidity position.

Sensitivity Analysis 

 
  

 
2014  

2013  

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2014
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32.1.2 Foreign currency risk

different currency from the Company�s functional currency).

32.1.3 Equity risk

future values of the investment securities.

32.2 Credit risk

receives advance a�ainst sales. 

Long-term investments  

Cash at bank and short-term deposits 

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013
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32.3  Liquidity risk

of fundin� throu�h an ade�uate amount of committed credit facilities. At the balance sheet date the 

32.4 Capital risk management

and cash e�uivalents.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

Less than
one year

One to
Total

Total

2014

NON
INTEREST
BEARING

INTEREST / MARKUP
PROFIT BEARING

Less than
one year

One to
Total

Total
(Restated)

2013

NON
INTEREST
BEARING
(Restated)

INTEREST / MARKUP
PROFIT BEARING
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Net debt

Total capital

Capital and net debt

Gearing ratio

(unobservable inputs).

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013
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33 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

33.1

entitlements.

33.2 

33.3

34 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES    

remuneration of directors and executives are disclosed in the relevant notes. Other material transactions 

Notes to the Financial Statements

2014 2013

(Rupees in ‘000)

EmployeesEmployees
ChiefChief

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013
Nature of transactionsRelationship

for the year ended June 30, 2014
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35 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

36 CAPACITY – clinker

  

      

37 DATE OF AUTHORISATION

Company.

38 DIVIDEND AND APPROPRIATIONS

 
 �ssuance of bonus shares �  1 share for every 10 ordinary shares held 

   

39 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

40 GENERAL    
    

2014

(Tons)

2013

2014

(Rupees in ‘000)

2013

Chief �xecutive
Azam Faruque

Chairman
Omar Faruque
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Pattern of Shareholding
as at June 30, 2014

No. of  
Shareholders

Shareholding
From To  Shares Held 
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Categories of Shareholders
as at June 30, 2014

Directors, their Spouse(s) and Minor Children  

  
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties  

  
   

  
Public Sector Companies And Corporations
  
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking Finance Companies,   
   Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas And Pension Funds
  
Mutual Funds  

  
General Public   
Others 
Total
   
Shareholders’ Holding 5% Or More
   

Shareholders’ Category No. of  
Shareholders  Shares Held 
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Important

33rd Annual
General Meeting 

2014

of

Revenue  

specimen si�nature re�istered 



SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

Circular No. 1 of 2000

of the Commission that there is some confusion about the authenticity of relevant documents in the matter of 

A. Attending of meeting in person by account holders and/or sub-account holders and persons whose securities 
are in group account and their registration details are uploaded to CDS: 

Re�ulations. 

the meetin�. 

of the nominee shall be produced at the time of the meetin�. 

 

mentioned on the form. 

proxy form. 

Circular

(M. JAVED PANNI) 
Chief (Coordination)
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